BIOLIFE SOLUTIONS INC Form 10-Q November 12, 2015

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, DC 20549

FORM 10-Q

þ QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF

For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2015

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File Number 0-18170

BioLife Solutions, Inc. (Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

DELAWARE (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

94-3076866 (IRS Employer Identification No.)

3303 MONTE VILLA PARKWAY, SUITE 310, BOTHELL, WASHINGTON, 98021 (Address of registrant's principal executive offices, Zip Code)

(425) 402-1400 (Telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes \(\bar{\rho} \) No "

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate website, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (S232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to submit and post said files). Yes þ No "

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer", "accelerated filer", and "smaller reporting"

company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. Large accelerated filer " Accelerated filer " Non-accelerated filer " Smaller reporting company b

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes "No b

As of November 10, 2015, 12,244,144 shares of the registrant's common stock were outstanding.

BIOLIFE SOLUTIONS, INC.

2

FORM 10-Q

FOR THE QUARTER ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Consolidated Financial Statements	
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30, 2015 (unaudited) and December 31, 2014	3
Consolidated Statements of Operations (unaudited) for the three and nine month periods ended	4
September 30, 2015 and 2014	
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss (unaudited) for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2015 and 2014	5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (unaudited) for the nine month periods ended September 30, 2015 and 2014	6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited)	7
Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	13
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk	18
Item 4. Controls and Procedures	18
PART II. OTHER INFORMATION	
Item 6. Exhibits	18
Signatures	19
Index to Exhibits	20

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Consolidated Financial Statements

BIOLIFE SOLUTIONS, INC. Consolidated Balance Sheets (Unaudited)

	,	September 30, 2015		December 31, 2014
Assets				
Current assets				
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	2,351,540	\$	2,538,758
Short term investments		2,902,105		7,399,636
Accounts receivable, trade, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of \$0 at September				
30, 2015 and December 31, 2014		792,274		901,623
Inventories		1,783,383		965,224
Prepaid expenses and other current assets		453,789		360,521
Total current assets		8,283,091		12,165,762
Property and equipment				
Leasehold improvements		1,284,491		1,284,491
Furniture and computer equipment		535,768		476,788
Manufacturing and other equipment		1,017,262		972,386
Subtotal		2,837,521		2,733,665
Less: Accumulated depreciation		(1,333,608)		(1,078,060)
Net property and equipment		1,503,913		1,655,605
Internal use software		1,187,022		_
Intangible asset		2,215,385		2,215,385
Long term deposits		36,166		36,166
Total assets	\$	13,225,577	\$	16,072,918
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity Current liabilities				
	\$	079 270	\$	171 662
Accounts payable	Ф	978,279 150,980	Ф	474,662
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities		•		121,869
Accrued compensation Deferred rent		372,426		535,029
		130,216		130,216
Total current liabilities		1,631,901		1,261,776
Long term liabilities		200 275		974 925
Deferred rent, long term		809,275		874,825
Total liabilities		2,441,176		2,136,601
Commitments and contingencies (Note 10)				
Communicates and contingencies (Note 10)				
Shareholders' equity				
Common stock, \$0.001 par value; 150,000,000 shares authorized, 12,172,715 and				
12,084,859 shares issued and outstanding at September 30, 2015 and December 31,				
2014		12,172		12,084

Additional paid-in capital	72,347,856	71,911,328
Accumulated other comprehensive loss	(601)	(6,448)
Accumulated deficit	(63,207,536)	(60,112,987)
Total BioLife Solutions, Inc. shareholders' equity	9,151,891	11,803,977
Total non-controlling interest equity	1,632,510	2,132,340
Total shareholders' equity	10,784,401	13,936,317
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity	\$ 13,225,577	\$ 16,072,918

BIOLIFE SOLUTIONS, INC. Consolidated Statements of Operations (unaudited)

	Three I	Months	Nine Months			
	Ended Sep	tember 30,	Ended September 30,			
	2015	2014	2015	2014		
Product sales	\$1,631,926	\$1,243,372	\$4,629,407	\$4,520,302		
Cost of product sales	658,542	654,978	1,954,752	2,483,199		
Gross profit	973,384	588,394	2,674,655	2,037,103		
Operating expenses						
Research and development	329,527	153,328	953,026	513,393		
Sales and marketing	677,033	298,263	1,819,778	810,279		
General and administrative	1,263,272	1,011,316	3,514,678	2,844,858		
Total operating expenses	2,269,832	1,462,907	6,287,482	4,168,530		
Operating loss	(1,296,448)	(874,513)	(3,612,827)	(2,131,427)		
Other income (expenses)						
Gain on disposal of property and equipment	_	4,400	_	4,400		
Interest income	4,729	7,658	18,448	12,175		
Interest expense	_		_	(177,308)		
Amortization of deferred financing costs				(13,022)		
Total other income (expenses)	4,729	12,058	18,448	(173,755)		
Net loss	(1,291,719)	(862,455)	(3,594,379)	(2,305,182)		
Net loss attributable to non-controlling interest	223,031		499,830			
Net loss attributable to BioLife Solutions, Inc.	\$(1,068,688)	\$(862,455)	\$(3,094,549)	\$(2,305,182)		
Basic and diluted net loss per common share attributable						
to BioLife Solutions, Inc.	\$(0.09)	\$(0.07)	\$(0.26)	\$(0.23)		
Basic and diluted weighted average common shares used						
to calculate net loss per common share	12,157,575	12,042,739	12,134,474	9,987,682		

BIOLIFE SOLUTIONS, INC. Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss (unaudited)

	Three M Ended Sept			Nine M Ended Sept	
	2015	2014		2015	2014
Net loss	\$(1,291,719)	\$(862,455)	\$(3,594,379)	\$(2,305,182)
Other comprehensive income (loss)					
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale investments	789	(3,099)	5,847	(6,606)
Total other comprehensive income (loss)	789	(3,099))	5,847	(6,606)
Comprehensive loss attributable to non-controlling interest	223,031			499,830	
Comprehensive loss attributable to BioLife Solutions, Inc.	\$(1,067,899)	\$(865,554)	\$(3,088,702)	\$(2,311,788)

BIOLIFE SOLUTIONS, INC. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(unaudited)

	Nine Month I Septem	
	2015	2014
Cash flows from operating activities		
Net loss	\$ (3,594,379)	\$ (2,305,182)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities		
Depreciation	255,548	186,105
Gain on disposal of property and equipment	<u> </u>	- (4,400)
Stock-based compensation expense	336,630	183,501
Stock issued for services	_	- 210,000
Amortization of deferred financing costs		- 13,022
Amortization of deferred rent related to lease incentives	(95,250)	(121,103)
Accretion and amortization on available for sale investments	81,210	53,198
Change in operating assets and liabilities		
(Increase) Decrease in		
Accounts receivable, trade	109,349	234,240
Inventories	(818,159)	(296,700)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets	(86,405)	16,638
Increase (Decrease) in		
Accounts payable	253,647	(698,232)
Accrued compensation and other current liabilities	(175,482)	(185,928)
Accrued interest, related parties	_	- 177,308
Deferred rent	29,700	(18,007)
Deferred revenue	_	- 90,000
Net cash used in operating activities	(3,703,591)	(2,465,540)
Cash flows from investing activities		
Sales of available-for-sale investments	5,825,000	102,376
Purchases of available-for-sale investments	(1,409,695)	(7,952,119)
Proceeds from the sale of property and equipment	_	- 4,400
Costs associated with internal use software development	(895,062)	
Purchase of property and equipment	(103,856)	(247,155)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities	3,416,387	(8,092,498)
Cash flows from financing activities		
Proceeds from sale of common stock, net of expenses	_	- 13,596,230
Proceeds from exercise of common stock options	99,986	80,592
Net cash provided by financing activities	99,986	13,676,822
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	(187,218)	3,118,784
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of period	2,538,758	156,273
	ф 2.251.7 10	ф. 2.27.5.5.T
Cash and cash equivalents - end of period	\$ 2,351,540	\$ 3,275,057

Non-cash investing activities	
Costs incurred for capitalized internal use software not paid as of quarter end (amounts	
are included in liabilities)	\$ 291,960 \$ —
Non-cash financing activities	
Conversion of notes payable and related party accrued interest to equity, net of	
unamortized deferred finance costs	\$ \$ 14,180,193
6	

BIOLIFE SOLUTIONS, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited)

1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies

Business

BioLife Solutions, Inc. ("BioLife," "us," "we," "our," or the "Company") is the leading developer, manufacturer and market of proprietary clinical grade cell and tissue hypothermic storage and cryopreservation freeze media and a related cloud hosted biologistics cold chain management app for smart shippers. Our proprietary HypoThermosol® and CryoStor® platform of solutions are highly valued in the biobanking, drug discovery, and regenerative medicine markets. Our biopreservation media products are serum-free and protein-free, fully defined, and are formulated to reduce preservation-induced cell damage and death. Our enabling technology provides commercial companies and clinical researchers significant improvement in shelf life and post-preservation viability and function of cells, tissues, and organs. Additionally, for our direct, distributor, and contract customers, we perform custom formulation, fill, and finish services.

Basis of Presentation

We have prepared the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"). Pursuant to these rules and regulations, we have condensed or omitted certain information and footnote disclosures we normally include in our annual consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP"). In management's opinion, we have made all adjustments (consisting only of normal, recurring adjustments) necessary to fairly present our financial position, results of operations and cash flows. Our interim period operating results do not necessarily indicate the results that may be expected for any other interim period or for the full year. These consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes thereto in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014 on file with the SEC.

There have been no material changes to our significant accounting policies as compared to the significant accounting policies described in the financial statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its majority-owned subsidiary. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Concentrations of credit risk and business risk

In each of the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, we derived approximately 10% of our product revenue from one customer. In the nine months ended September 30, 2014, we derived approximately 24% of our product revenue from our relationship with one contract manufacturing customer. Two other customers, in aggregate, accounted for 34% and 22% of revenue in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014, respectively. No other customer accounted for more than 10% of revenue in the three or nine months ended September 30, 2015 or 2014. At September 30, 2015, two customers accounted for approximately 26% of total gross accounts receivable. At

December 31, 2014, two customers accounted for approximately 25% of total gross accounts receivable.

Revenue from customers located in foreign countries represented 21% of total revenue in each of the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 19% and 15% of total revenue during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014, respectively.

Internal Use Software

We capitalize costs associated with the development of the biologistex web and mobile applications, which we consider internal-use software. Capitalization of costs began in the first quarter of 2015, when we reached the application development stage. Such capitalized costs include external direct costs utilized in developing or obtaining the applications and payroll and payroll-related expenses for employees, who are directly associated with the development of the applications. Capitalization will cease once we have completed all substantial testing, at which time the applications are complete and ready for their intended use.

In the nine months ended September 30, 2015, we capitalized \$1.2 million in costs related to the development of the biologistex web and mobile applications. Of this amount, \$0.2 million was unpaid as of September 30, 2015. Maintenance and enhancement costs, including those costs in the post-implementation stages, will be expensed as incurred, unless such costs relate to substantial upgrades and enhancements to the software that result in added functionality, in which case the costs are capitalized. Capitalized costs will be amortized on a straight-line basis over estimated useful life of three years once the software has been commercially deployed.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

On May 28, 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, Topic 606, requiring an entity to recognize the amount of revenue to which it expects to be entitled for the transfer of promised goods or services to customers. The updated standard will replace most existing revenue recognition guidance in U.S. GAAP when it becomes effective and permits the use of either the retrospective or cumulative effect transition method. Early adoption is not permitted. The updated standard becomes effective for us in the first quarter of fiscal 2018. We have not yet selected a transition method and we are currently evaluating the effect that the updated standard will have on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-11, Simplifying the Measurement of Inventory: Topic 330 (ASU 2015-11). Topic 330 currently requires an entity to measure inventory at the lower of cost or market. Market could be replacement cost, net realizable value, or net realizable value less an approximately normal profit margin. ASU 2015-11 requires that inventory measured using either the first-in, first-out (FIFO) or average cost method be measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of business, less reasonably predictable costs of completion, disposal, and transportation. Adoption of ASU 2015-11 is required for fiscal reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, including interim reporting periods within those fiscal years. The Company does not expect adoption of ASU 2015-11 to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

With the exception of the new revenue standard discussed above, there have been no new accounting pronouncements not yet effective that have significance, or potential significance, to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

2. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

The following tables show the changes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss by component for the nine months ended September 30, 2015:

		Nine
	M	Ionths
	E	Ended
	Sep	otember
	30	, 2015
Unrealized Loss on Investments, Beginning Balance	\$	(6,448)
Unrealized Gain on Investments, Current Period		5,847
Unrealized Loss on Investments, Ending Balance	\$	(601)

3. Fair Value Measurement

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 820, "Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures," ("ASC Topic 820"), the Company measures its cash and cash equivalents and short term investments at fair value on a recurring basis. ASC Topic 820 clarifies that fair value is an exit price, representing the amount that would be received to sell an asset or

paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. As such, fair value is a market-based measurement that should be determined based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. As a basis for considering such assumptions, ASC Topic 820 establishes a three-tier value fair hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value as follows:

Level 1 – Observable inputs that reflect quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 – Observable inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the related assets or liabilities.

Level 3 – Unobservable data points for the asset or liability, and include situations where there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability.

As of September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the Company does not have liabilities that are measured at fair value.

The following tables set forth the Company's financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, based on the three-tier fair value hierarchy:

As of September 30, 2015	Level 1	Level 2	Total
Bank deposits	\$345,085	\$ —	\$345,085
Money market funds	2,006,455	_	2,006,455
Cash and cash equivalents	2,351,540	_	2,351,540
Corporate debt securities	2,902,105	_	2,902,105
Total	\$5,253,645	\$ —	\$5,253,645
As of December 31 2014	Level 1	Level 2	Total
As of December 31, 2014 Bank deposits	Level 1 \$972,891	Level 2 \$—	Total \$972,891
As of December 31, 2014 Bank deposits Money market funds			
Bank deposits Money market funds	\$972,891	\$	\$972,891
Bank deposits	\$972,891 1,565,867	\$ <u> </u>	\$972,891 1,565,867
Bank deposits Money market funds Cash and cash equivalents	\$972,891 1,565,867 2,538,758	\$— — —	\$972,891 1,565,867 2,538,758
Bank deposits Money market funds Cash and cash equivalents Corporate debt securities	\$972,891 1,565,867 2,538,758 6,799,702	\$— — —	\$972,891 1,565,867 2,538,758 6,799,702

The fair values of bank deposits, money market funds, corporate debt securities and commercial paper classified as Level 1 were derived from quoted market prices as active markets for these instruments exist. The Company has no level 2 or level 3 financial assets. The Company did not have any transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy during the nine months ended September 30, 2015 and the twelve months ended December 31, 2014.

Investments in debt securities at September 30, 2015, are investment grade and carried a long-term rating of BBB+ or higher.

4. Short Term Investments

The amortized cost and fair value of short term investments as of September 30, 2015 were as follows:

		Gross	Gross	
	Amortized	Unrealized	Unrealized	
	Cost	Gains	Losses	Fair Value
Corporate debt securities	\$2,902,706	\$—	\$(601)	\$2,902,105

The amortized cost and fair value of short term investments as of December 31, 2014 were as follows:

		Gross	Gross	
	Amortized	Unrealized	Unrealized	l
	Cost	Gains	Losses	Fair Value
Corporate debt securities	\$6,806,150	\$ —	\$(6,448) \$6,799,702
Commercial paper	599,934	_	_	599,934
Total marketable securities	\$7,406,084	\$—	\$(6,448) \$7,399,636

As of September 30, 2015, there are no short term investments, classified and accounted for as available-for-sale securities that have been in a continuous unrealized loss position in excess of twelve months.

As of September 30, 2015, all of the Company's short term investments had maturity dates due within 1 year or less.

5. Inventory

Inventory consists of the following at September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014:

	S	September		ecember
	3	30, 2015	3	31, 2014
Raw materials	\$	351,783	\$	362,656
Work in progress		552,702		79,012
Finished goods		878,898		523,556
Total	\$	1,783,383	\$	965,224

6. Deferred Rent

Deferred rent consists of the following at September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014:

	September	December
	30, 2015	31, 2014
Landlord-funded leasehold improvements	\$ 1,124,790	\$ 1,124,790
Less accumulated amortization	(343,781)	(248,531)
Total	781,009	876,259
Straight line rent adjustment	158,482	128,782
Total deferred rent	\$ 939,491	\$ 1,005,041

During the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2015, the Company recorded \$31,750 and \$95,250, respectively, in deferred rent amortization of these landlord funded leasehold improvements. During the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2014, the Company recorded \$27,063 and \$88,406, respectively, in deferred rent amortization of these landlord funded leasehold improvements.

Straight line rent adjustment represents the difference between cash rent payments and the recognition of rent expense on a straight-line basis over the terms of the lease.

7. Share-based Compensation

Stock Options

We have a stock-based compensation plan, the Amended and Restated 2013 Performance Incentive Plan (the "2013 Plan"), which allows us to grant options or restricted stock units to all employees, including executive officers, outside consultants, and non-employee directors. The Plan was amended by stockholder approval on May 4, 2015, to increase the number of shares of common stock available to be granted under the Plan to 3,100,000, plus any shares of common stock underlying any option granted pursuant to an equity compensation plan other than the 2013 Plan that was outstanding on June 20, 2013, the date the stockholders originally approved the 2013 Plan, and that subsequently terminated or expired.

The following is a summary of stock option activity for the nine month period ended September 30, 2015, and the status of stock options outstanding at September 30, 2015:

Nine Month Period Ended September 30, 2015 Wtd. Avg.

		Ε	Exercise
	Options		Price
Outstanding at beginning of year	1,390,770	\$	1.50
Granted	1,290,881	\$	2.06
Exercised	(87,856)	\$	1.14
Forfeited	(3,438)	\$	3.77
Outstanding at September 30, 2015	2,590,357	\$	1.79
Stock options exercisable at September 30, 2015	1,215,230	\$	1.41
10			

As of September 30, 2015, there was \$1,131,568 of aggregate intrinsic value of outstanding stock options, including \$1,065,275 of aggregate intrinsic value of exercisable stock options. Intrinsic value is the total pretax intrinsic value for all "in-the-money" options (i.e., the difference between the Company's closing stock price on the last trading day of the quarter and the exercise price, multiplied by the number of shares) that would have been received by the option holders had all option holders exercised their options on September 30, 2015. This amount will change based on the fair market value of the Company's stock. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 intrinsic value of awards exercised was \$18,196 and \$90,118, respectively. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 intrinsic value of awards exercised was \$0 and \$153,216, respectively. Weighted average grant date fair value for options granted during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 was \$1.90 and \$1.75 per share and \$2.22 and \$2.96 for the three and nine months, respectively, ended September 30, 2014.

The fair value of share-based payments made with stock options to employees and non-employee directors was estimated on the measurement date using the Black-Scholes model using the following weighted average assumptions.

	Three Mont	h Period	Nine Month Period		
	Ende	d	Ended		
	Septemb	er 30,	September 30,		
	2015 2014		2015	2014	
Risk free interest rate	1.77%	1.93%	1.77%	2.02%	
Dividend yield	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	
Expected term (in years)	7	7	7	7	
Volatility	105%	105%	105%	105%	

We recorded stock compensation expense related to options for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, as follows:

	Three Month Period Ended				Nine Month Period Ended			
	September 30,				September 30,			
		2015 2014				2015	2014	
Research and development costs	\$	26,751	\$	1,064	\$	53,109	\$	18,550
Sales and marketing costs		26,746		7,624		51,771		12,910
General and administrative costs		93,955		46,671		159,405		111,947
Cost of product sales		30,807		18,966		72,345		40,094
Total	\$	178,259	\$	74,325	\$	336,630	\$	183,501

Management applies an estimated forfeiture rate that is derived from historical employee termination data. The estimated forfeiture rate applied for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2015 and 2014 was approximately 7%.

As of September 30, 2015, we had approximately \$2,231,126 of unrecognized compensation expense related to unvested stock options. We expect to recognize this compensation expense over a weighted average period of approximately 3.4 years.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2014, we issued or committed to issue common stock of the Company with a value of \$210,000 for services rendered during the period. These costs were recorded in general and administrative expenses during the period.

Restricted Stock

At September 30, 2015, there were no unvested restricted stock units outstanding.

8. Warrants

At September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, we had 7,428,141 warrants outstanding and exercisable with a weighted average exercise price of \$4.49. The outstanding warrants have expiration dates between November 2015 and March 2021.

9. Net Loss per Common Share

Basic net loss per common share is calculated by dividing the net loss by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is calculated using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding plus dilutive common stock equivalents outstanding during the period. Common stock equivalents are excluded for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, since the effect is anti-dilutive due to the Company's net losses. Common stock equivalents include stock options and warrants.

Basic weighted average common shares outstanding, and the potentially dilutive securities excluded from loss per share computations because they are anti-dilutive, are as follows as of September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively:

	Three Month I	Period Ended	Nine Month P	eriod Ended	
	Septeml	ber 30,	September 30,		
	2015	2014	2015	2014	
Basic and diluted weighted average common stock shares					
outstanding	12,157,575	12,042,739	12,134,474	9,987,682	
Potentially dilutive securities excluded from loss per share					
computations:					
Common stock options	2,590,357	1,384,341	2,590,357	1,384,341	
Common stock purchase warrants	7,428,141	7,428,141	7,428,141	7,428,141	

10. Commitments & Contingencies

Leases

We lease approximately 30,000 square feet in our Bothell, Washington headquarters. The term of our lease continues until July 31, 2021 with two options to extend the term of the lease, each of which is for an additional period of five years, with the first extension term commencing, if at all, on August 1, 2021, and the second extension term commencing, if at all, immediately following the expiration of the first extension term. In accordance with the amended lease agreement, our monthly base rent is approximately \$59,700, with scheduled annual increases each August and again in October for the most recent amendment. We are also required to pay an amount equal to the Company's proportionate share of certain taxes and operating expenses.

Employment agreements

We have employment agreements with the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Technology Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Vice President, Marketing and Vice President, Global Sales. None of these employment agreements is for a definitive period, but rather each will continue indefinitely until terminated in accordance with its terms. The agreements provide for a base annual salary, payable in monthly (or shorter) installments. In addition, the agreement with the Chief Executive Officer provides for incentive bonuses at the discretion of the Board of Directors. Under certain conditions and for certain of these officers, we may be required to pay additional amounts upon terminating the officer or upon the officer resigning for good reason.

biologistex

Our biologistex joint venture committed to purchase approximately \$2.4 million in Smart Containers from SAVSU. As of September 30, 2015, the remaining purchase commitment is \$2.2 million.

We agreed to pay SAVSU \$1.0 million in consideration of SAVSU's participation in the biologistex joint venture. If certain performance requirements are met, we will record these costs in twelve equal increments. As of September 30, 2015, we have recorded \$0.8 million related to this commitment.

Litigation

From time to time, the Company is subject to various legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of business, none of which are currently material to the Company's business.

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Forward Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains "forward-looking statements". These forward-looking statements involve a number of risks and uncertainties. We caution readers that any forward-looking statement is not a guarantee of future performance and that actual results could differ materially from those contained in the forward-looking statement. These statements are based on current expectations of future events. Such statements include, but are not limited to, statements about future financial and operating results, plans, objectives, expectations and intentions, costs and expenses, interest rates, outcome of contingencies, financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, business strategies, cost savings, objectives of management and other statements that are not historical facts. You can find many of these statements by looking for words like "believes," "expects," "anticipates," "estimates," "may," "should," "will," "plan," "intend," or similar expressions in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. We intend that such forward-looking statements be subject to the safe harbors created thereby. Examples of these forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to:

anticipated product developments, regulatory filings and related requirements; timing and amount of future contractual payments, product revenue and operating expenses; market acceptance of our products and the estimated potential size of these markets; and projections regarding liquidity, capital requirements and the terms of any financing agreements.

These forward-looking statements are based on the current beliefs and expectations of our management and are subject to significant risks and uncertainties. If underlying assumptions prove inaccurate or unknown risks or uncertainties materialize, actual results may differ materially from current expectations and projections. These risks and uncertainties include those factors described in greater detail in the risk factors disclosed in our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 filed with the SEC. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should any of our assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary in material respects from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements. The Company undertakes no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as may be required under applicable securities laws.

You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q or, in the case of documents referred to or incorporated by reference, the date of those documents.

All subsequent written or oral forward-looking statements attributable to us or any person acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements contained or referred to in this section. We do not undertake any obligation to release publicly any revisions to these forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events, except as may be required under applicable U.S. securities law. If we do update one or more forward-looking statements, no inference should be drawn that we will make additional updates with respect to those or other forward-looking statements.

Overview

Management's discussion and analysis provides additional insight into the Company and is provided as a supplement to, and should be read in conjunction with, our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 filed with the SEC.

We were incorporated in Delaware in 1987 under the name Trans Time Medical Products, Inc. In 2002, the Company, then known as Cryomedical Sciences, Inc., and engaged in manufacturing and marketing cryosurgical products, completed a merger with our wholly-owned subsidiary, BioLife Solutions, Inc., which was engaged as a developer and marketer of biopreservation tools for cells and tissues. Following the merger, we changed our name to BioLife Solutions, Inc. We have one majority-owned subsidiary, biologistex CCM, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company.

Our proprietary, clinical grade HypoThermosol® FRS and CryoStor® biopreservation media products are marketed to the regenerative medicine, biobanking and drug discovery markets, including hospital-based stem cell transplant centers, pharmaceutical companies, cord blood and adult stem cell banks, hair transplant centers, and suppliers of cells to the drug discovery, toxicology testing and diagnostic markets. All of our biopreservation media products are serum-free and protein-free, fully defined, and are manufactured under current Good Manufacturing Practices (cGMP) using United States Pharmacopia (USP)/Multicompendial or the highest available grade components.

Our patented biopreservation media products are formulated to reduce preservation-induced, delayed-onset cell damage and death. Our platform enabling technology provides our customers significant shelf life extension of biologic source material and final cell products, and also greatly improved post-preservation cell, tissue, and organ viability and function.

The discoveries made by our scientists and consultants relate to how cells, tissues, and organs respond to the stress of hypothermic storage, cryopreservation, and the thawing process. These discoveries enabled the formulation of innovative biopreservation media products that protect biologic material from preservation-related cellular injury, much of which is not apparent immediately after return to normothermic body temperature. Our product formulations have demonstrated notable reduction in apoptotic (programmed) and necrotic (pathologic) cell death mechanisms and are enabling the clinical and commercial development of dozens of innovative regenerative medicine products.

On September 29, 2014, we entered into a limited liability company agreement with SAVSU Technologies, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, to create a 20-year joint venture for the purpose of acquiring, developing, maintaining, owning, operating, marketing and selling an integrated platform of a cloud-based information service and precision thermal shipping products. The evoTM line is our new line of "smart shippers" designed for the shipment of materials, which must be maintained frozen, at 2-8°C and/or controlled room temperature temperatures and where near real time monitoring of temperature, location, and payload status information is necessary. A sophisticated electronics package embedded in the evo provides streaming data to the biologistex web-based application; where real time shipment status, history, and reports can be generated. Designed for small volume shipments; it fills a critical need in chain-of-custody scenarios for temperature sensitive shipments of cells, tissues, and other cell based products.

Highlights for the Third Quarter of 2015

Biopreservation media products revenue was \$1.6 million in the third quarter of 2015, an increase of 31% over the same period in 2014. For the first nine months of 2015, biopreservation media product revenue increased 32% as compared to last year. Third quarter revenue growth drivers include 38% higher direct sales to our regenerative medicine customers compared to the same period in 2014 and higher sales through our distribution network. Sales to our hair transplantation customers also grew over 100% compared to the same period in 2014.

Gross margin in the third quarter of 2015 was 60%, compared to 47% in the third quarter of 2014. For the first nine months of 2015, gross margin was 58%, compared to 45% in the first nine months of 2014. The improvement over 2014 reflects higher sales of biopreservation media products, with improved utilization of our manufacturing facility and lower overhead costs allocated per unit. In addition, the nine months ended September 30, 2015 included \$0.1 million and the nine months ended September 30, 2014 included \$1.1 million of low margin contract-manufacturing revenue.

For the three months ended September 30, 2015, consolidated net loss was \$1.3 million and net loss attributable to BioLife was \$1.1 million. This is compared to a consolidated net loss of \$0.9 million in the third quarter of 2014. For the nine months ended September 30, 2015, consolidated net loss was \$3.6 million and net loss attributable to BioLife was \$3.1 million, compared to consolidated net loss of \$2.3 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2014. The increase in the loss is primarily the result of increased headcount and spending related to the development and launch activities of our biologistex joint venture.

biologistex Commercial Launch: During the quarter, we commercially launched the biologistex cold chain management app and began shipping evoTM Smart Shippers to customers to support their validation processes.

Product Innovation: We launched the new product, BloodStor 27 NaCl Freeze Media, targeting end user cryopreservation applications including freezing of platelets for clinical administration. In the U.S. alone, over 2

million doses of fresh platelets are administered annually. Frozen storage of therapeutic platelets could improve logistics in caring for hemodynamically unstable patients, in situations where fresh platelets are unable to be collected or administered following collection.

Customer Adoption: Management believes that BioLife products are now embedded in over 200 pre-clinical validation projects and human clinical trials for new cell and tissue-based regenerative medicine products and therapies. A significant number involve CAR-T cells and other types of T cells and mesenchymal stem cells targeting blood cancers, solid tumors and other leading causes of death and disability. UK-based TC Biopharm Ltd, a developer of anti-cancer immunotherapies, announced that it has incorporated our CryoStor clinical and commercial grade freeze media in its manufacturing and clinical delivery processes of ImmuniCell, a novel T cell based immunotherapy targeting various cancers.

Results of Operations

Our revenue, results of operations and cash balances are likely to fluctuate significantly from quarter-to-quarter. These fluctuations are due to a number of factors, specifically the progress of our customers' clinical trials, where the pace of enrollment affects customer orders for our products. The majority of our net sales come from a relatively small number of customers and a limited number of market sectors. Each of these sectors is subject to macroeconomic conditions as well as trends and conditions that are sector specific. Any weakness in the market sectors in which our customers are concentrated could affect our business and results of operations.

Comparison of Results of Operations for the Three and Nine Month Periods Ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

Percentage comparisons have been omitted within the following table where they are not considered meaningful.

Revenue and Gross Margin

	Three Mont	th Period	Ended		
		ember 30			
	2015	inoci 50,	2014	% Change	
Revenue:					
Biopreservation media product sales	\$1,631,926		\$1,243,372	31%	
Cost of sales	658,542		654,978	1%	
Gross profit	973,384		588,394	65%	
Gross margin %	60%		47%		
	Nine Month	Period E	nded		
	September 30,				
	2015		2014	% Change	
Revenue:					
Biopreservation media product sales	\$ 4,542,526	\$	3,452,397	32%	
Contract manufacturing services	86,881		1,067,905	(92)%	
Total revenue	4,629,407		4,520,302	2%	
Cost of sales	1,954,752		2,483,199	(21)%	
Gross profit	2,674,655		2,037,103	31%	
Gross margin %	58%		45%		

Biopreservation Media Product Sales. Our biopreservation media products are sold through both direct and indirect channels to customers in the regenerative medicine, biobanking and drug discovery markets. Sales of our biopreservation media products in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 increased compared to the same periods in 2014, due primarily to a 33% and 36%, respectively, increase in biopreservation media product liters sold during the periods and revenue growth of 53% year-to-date over the same period in 2014 from customers in the regenerative medicine segment. We expect to see continued growth in adoption and use of our biopreservation media products, and estimate 20% - 30% growth in biopreservation media product revenue in 2015 compared to 2014.

Contract Manufacturing Services. In the nine months ended September 30, 2015, contract manufacturing revenue was the result of process validation work performed for one customer and sales of certain raw materials related to this customer. In 2014, contract manufacturing services represented sales of product to one significant different customer. The contract with this customer was terminated in May 2014, and we do not expect any future revenue from this

customer.

Cost of Sales. Cost of sales consists of raw materials, labor and overhead expenses. Cost of sales in the three months ended September 30, 2015 increased compared to the same period in 2014 due to increased sales of our biopreservation media products. Cost of sales in the nine months ended September 30, 2015 decreased compared to the same periods in 2014 due primarily to the reduction in contract manufacturing services revenue and costs related to the manufacture of this product, offset by increased sales of our biopreservation media products.

Gross Margin. Gross margin as a percentage of revenue was 60% and 58% in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 compared to 47% and 45% in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014. The increase was due to an increase in higher margin biopreservation media product revenue and the reduction in low margin contract manufacturing revenue. For the full year, we expect gross margin to be in the range of 55% to 60%.

Operating Expenses

Our operating expenses for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2015 and 2014 were:

	Three Month Period Ended September 30,					
	2015		2014	% Change		
Operating Expenses:				_		
Research and development	\$ 329,527	\$	153,328	115%		
Sales and marketing	677,033		298,263	127%		
General and administrative	1,263,272		1,011,316	25%		
Operating Expenses	2,269,832		1,462,907	55%		
% of revenue	139%		118%			
	Nine Month Period Ended					
	September 30, 2015 2014 % Chan					
Operating Expenses:	2013		2014	% Change		
Research and development	\$ 953,026	\$	513,393	86%		
Sales and marketing	1,819,778		810,279	125%		
General and administrative	3,514,678		2,844,858	24%		
Operating Expenses	6,287,482		4,168,530	51%		
% of revenue	136%		92%			

Research and Development. Research and development expenses consist primarily of salaries and other personnel-related expenses, consulting and other outside services, laboratory supplies, and other costs. We expense all research and development costs as incurred, with the exception of the costs associated with the development of customized internal-use software systems, which are capitalized. Research and development expenses for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 increased compared to the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014, due primarily to higher personnel costs, with the addition of personnel in the fourth quarter of 2014, and salary increases that were effective on January 1, 2015.

Sales and Marketing. Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of salaries and other personnel-related expenses, consulting, trade shows and advertising. The increase in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 compared to the same periods in 2014 was due primarily to higher personnel costs, with the addition of personnel in 2014 and 2015 and salary increases that were effective on January 1, 2015, and initial marketing costs related to our new biologistex service.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses consist primarily of personnel-related expenses, non-cash stock-based compensation for administrative personnel and members of the board of directors, professional fees, such as accounting and legal, corporate insurance, and participation fees to SAVSU related to the biologistex joint venture. The increases in general and administrative expenses in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 compared to the same period in 2014 includes approximately \$0.3 million and \$0.5 million, respectively, in joint venture participation fees. The increase in other general and administrative costs in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 compared to the same periods in 2014 were due to higher personnel costs with the addition of personnel in 2014 and salary increases that were effective on January 1, 2015 and higher corporate costs, including insurance, taxes, director fees and consulting fees.

Other Income (Expenses)

Interest Expense. The reduction in interest expense in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 compared to the same periods in 2014 is due to the conversion to equity of all outstanding notes and interest through March 25, 2014.

Amortization of Deferred Financing Costs. Amortization of deferred financing costs represented the cost of warrants issued which were amortized over the life of the debt. In connection with the termination of the note facility agreements in March 2014, we recorded \$101,852, the remaining unamortized costs, as an adjustment to additional paid in capital.

Liquidity

We expect to have ongoing cash requirements which we plan to fund through total available liquidity and cash flows generated from operations. Our future uses of cash, which may vary from time to time based on market conditions and other factors, are centered on growing our biopreservation media business, launching and deploying our biologistex service, and continuing to strengthen our balance sheet and competitive position.

On September 30, 2015, we had \$5.3 million in cash, cash equivalents and short term investments, compared to cash and cash equivalents and short term investments of \$9.9 million at December 31, 2014.

The estimated use of cash in 2015 includes substantial costs related to the development and marketing launch of our biologistex Cold Chain Management service. Based on our current expectations with respect to our revenue and expenses and subject to any strategic transactions, we expect our current level of cash and cash equivalents will be sufficient to meet our liquidity needs for our current operations through 2016.

We continue to monitor and evaluate opportunities to strengthen our balance sheet and competitive position over the long-term. These actions may include acquisitions or other strategic transactions that we believe would generate significant advantages and substantially strengthen our business. The consideration we pay in such transactions may include, among other things, shares of our common stock, other equity or debt securities of our Company or cash. We may elect to seek debt or equity financing in anticipation of, or in connection with, such transactions or to fund or invest in any operations acquired thereby.

Net Cash Used In Operating Activities

During the nine months ended September 30, 2015, net cash used in operating activities was \$3.7 million compared to \$2.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2014. The increase in cash used in operating activities was primarily due to the use of cash to fund higher net losses and cash used by changes in operating assets and liabilities.

Net Cash Provided by/Used in Investing Activities

Net cash provided by investing activities totaled \$3.4 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2015, which was the result of sales and maturities of short term investments, net of purchases of short term investments and purchases of equipment and \$0.9 million of costs associated with internal use software development during the quarter. Cash used in investing activities was \$8.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2014, primarily related to the purchase of short term investments and equipment, offset by proceeds from sales/maturities of short term investments.

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities was \$0.1 million and \$13.7 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Net cash provided by financing activities during the nine months ended September 30, 2015 was the result of proceeds received from employee stock option exercises. Net cash provided by financing activities in the nine months ended September 30, 2014 was primarily the result of proceeds received from the registered public stock offering completed on March 25, 2014, net of placement agent fees and offering costs.

Upon conversion of all of our outstanding notes and interest to equity on March 25, 2014, we terminated the facility agreements.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of September 30, 2015, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.

Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Judgments and Estimates

Management's discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based on our consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States. The preparation of financial statements requires that we make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements as well as reported revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate estimates, including, but not limited to those related to accounts receivable allowances, determination of fair value of share-based compensation, contingencies, income taxes, useful lives and impairment of intangible assets and internal use software, and expense accruals. We base our estimates on historical experience and on other factors that we believes are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ materially from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

Our critical accounting policies and estimates have not changed significantly from those policies and estimates disclosed under the heading "Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Judgments and Estimates" in Part II, Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operations" of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, filed with the SEC.

Contractual Obligations

We previously disclosed certain contractual obligations and contingencies and commitments relevant to us within the financial statements and Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014, as filed with the SEC on March 12, 2015. There have been no significant changes to these obligations in the three months ended September 30, 2015. For more information regarding our current contingencies and commitments, see note 10 to the consolidated financial statements included above.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Not applicable.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that material information required to be disclosed in our periodic reports filed under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms and to ensure that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. During the quarter ended September 30, 2015, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including the chief executive officer and chief financial officer, as required by the rules and regulations under the Exchange Act, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act. Based on this evaluation, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that, as of September 30, 2015, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting. There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended September 30, 2015 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting.

Limitations on Effectiveness of Control. Our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, does not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures or our internal controls over financial reporting will prevent all errors and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within our Company have been detected.

PART II: Other Information

Item 6. Exhibits

See accompanying Index to Exhibits included after the signature page of this report for a list of exhibits filed or furnished with this report.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

BIOLIFE SOLUTIONS, INC.

Dated: November 12, 2015 By: /s/ Daphne Taylor

Daphne Taylor

Chief Financial Officer

BIOLIFE SOLUTIONS, INC.

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit No.	Description
31.1	Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2	Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1	Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2	Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
20	